


           APPROVED MINUTES 
 
 

MEETING OF THE DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
 

January 14, 2015 
 
 
1. Call to Order – The meeting was called to order at 8:32 a.m. by Chair Brian Harris.   
 
2. Attendance            
 

Present:  Kayem Dunn, Dr. Wendy Falb, Brian Harris, Mayor George Heartwell, Elissa Hillary, 
Diana Sieger Jim Talen, Rick Winn  
 
Absent: Jane Gietzen  
 
Others Present:  Kristopher Larson (Executive Director), Mary Sierawski (DDA Executive 
Asst/Office Manager), Jana Wallace (DDA Treasurer), Eric Pratt, Tim Kelly, Bill Kirk, Kim 
Van Driel, Brian Hedrick, Mandy Cech (staff),  Jared Belka, Nick Koster, Jim Harger (MLive), 
and others.  

  
3.  Approval of Minutes of December 10, 2014 
 

Motion:  Dr. Wendy Falb, supported by Rick Winn, moved approval of the minutes of the 
December 10, 2014 DDA meeting as presented.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
4. Accept December 31, 2014 Financial Statements 
 

Ms. Wallace presented the financial statements for the first half of the fiscal year ending June 
30, 2015.  Mr. Larson added that the Administration line item is currently trending over 
budget due to unplanned costs associated with TIF advocacy work plus higher than expected 
A-87 indirect costs form the City of Grand Rapids.  

 
Motion: Mayor George Heartwell, supported by Rick Winn, moved to approve Statement D: 
Schedule of December 2014 Expenditures as recommended.  Motion carried unanimously.  

 
5. Approve 2015 Meeting Schedule    
 

Mr. Larson presented the 2015 meeting calendar.  The meetings will be held in City Hall 
unless otherwise notified.   

 
Motion: Mayor George Heartwell, supported by Diana Sieger, moved to approve the 2015 
meeting calendar.  Motion carried unanimously.   

 
6.  Election of 2015 DDA Chair and Vice-Chair 

 



Downtown Development Authority 
Minutes – January 14, 2015 
Page 2 
 

Mr. Harris said that at this point in the year, it’s traditional to elect a Chair and Vice Chair.  Mr. 
Harris opened the floor for nominations and discussion.  Mayor Heartwell said that Mr. Harris 
and Ms. Dunn have served the Board well and made a motion to re-elect Mr. Harris for Chair 
and Ms. Dunn for Vice-Chair.  Mr. Harris thanked the Mayor for his kind words.   
 
Motion: Mayor George Heartwell, supported by Dr. Wendy Falb, moved to elect Brian Harris as 
Chair and Kayem Dunn as Vice-Chair of the DDA Board.  Motion carried unanimously.   

 
7. Authorize Contract Execution for Veteran’s Park Construction Documents 
 

Mr. Kelly said in September 2012, the DDA Board approved an agreement to complete the 
historic evaluation of and master planning for Monument and Veteran’s Memorial Parks.  The 
Master Plan was approved in 2013 and identified an approach to enhance public use of the 
spaces, while continuing to celebrate the heritage of the parks and honor the service and 
sacrifice of local military veterans.  Mr. Kelly said the Plan was developed in close partnership 
with the Monument and Veteran Park Steering Committee.  Mr. Kelly said a Request for 
Proposals was released on November 24, 2014, with all interested parties invited to attend a 
pre-proposal meeting on December 2, 2014.  Mr. Kelly said following the meeting, four 
proposals were received and that DDA staff was joined by the City of Grand Rapids 
Engineering Department to manage the RFP and selection processes.  Based on the 
evaluation by staff and the Steering Committee, the team of SKO Design Group was 
identified as the preferred consultant for the project.  Mr. Kelly shared that SKO Design 
Group is a Minority-Owned business based in Grand Rapids with decades of experience in 
engineering and architecture.  Ms. Hillary asked if the snowmelt system extends to Veteran’s 
Park.  Mr. Kelly said no.  Mr. Harris asked about the funding of the construction.  Mr. Kelly 
said the funding is anticipated to come primarily from Brownfield tax increment generated 
from the Fitzgerald condominium redevelopment project.   

 
Motion: Diana Sieger, supported by Elissa Hillary, moved to authorize up to $100,000 for the 
City of Grand Rapids to contract with SKO for a scope of work needed to complete construction 
drawings for Veteran’s Memorial Park. Motion carried unanimously.   
 

8.  Approve Development Incentives for Rowe Hotel   
 

Mr. Pratt presented a request for support for the redevelopment of the former Rowe Hotel 
located at 201 Michigan Street NW.  Mr. Pratt said that recently, CWD Real Estate, working 
on behalf of the property owner OMH, LLC, announced plan to redevelop the former Rowe 
Hotel and convert the building into a mixed-use development with 9,500 square-feet of 
ground floor retail and restaurant space, 77 market-rate one and two bedroom apartments, 
which would include a limited number of for-sale condominiums on the newly constructed 11th 
floor.  Mr. Pratt introduced Nick Koster and Jared Belka to present additional information and 
answer any questions about the project.  Mr. Koster said they are working with the State and 
City to move this project forward and that due to the challenging nature of this project, they 



Downtown Development Authority 
Minutes – January 14, 2015 
Page 3 
 

are using all the tools in the tool box to make this project economically feasible.  Mr. Larson 
asked about the other components of public financing for this project.  Mr. Koster said less 
than 1% is being requested from the DDA and that requests for financial support are going to 
be made to the Brownfield TIF and State of Michigan as well.  Mr. Larson asked about the 
estimated pricing per square foot.  Mr. Koster said the pricing will be similar to other rentals 
and condominiums in the vicinity.  Ms. Sieger asked why the Rowe Building is not in the DDA 
boundaries.  Mr. Pratt said it was determined that the Rowe Building would not be included 
within the DDA boundaries in order to have more opportunities for use of other TIFs besides 
the DDA.  Ms. Hillary asked if the DDA has previously financially supported a project in the 
space that we do not collect capture.  Mr. Pratt said the DDA has previously supported a 
similar request.  Ms. Hillary asked if there are other projects we may see come to the Board for 
support in the future and if the Board is setting a precedent if approved today.  Mr. Harris 
asked if this is an opportunity to meet the community’s desires by providing support for this 
project.  Mayor Heartwell asked Mr. Koster if they do not receive funding from any of the 
supporters, will the project still move forward.  Mr. Koster said yes, but there are a lot of 
moving pieces, and while they may be able to get around these challenges creatively, how all 
of the pieces fit together are very important to the success of the project.  Mayor Heartwell 
asked if all of those pieces will come together by spring.  Mr. Koster said he thinks they can.  
Mr. Larson added that the State often looks at local support for projects to prioritize the 
projects and give funding.  Mr. Talen said it feels like the amount the DDA would be 
contributing to the areaway is pretty insignificant as opposed to the entire plan, and has there 
been any discussion to support in façade improvements or in a different way.  Mr. Pratt said 
the Alliance for Investment is looking at all of the different inventive programs the DDA 
offers to determine what the best way to spend these dollars may be in the future.  Ms. Sieger 
asked if there will be enough parking to accommodate the residents living in the apartments 
and condos.  Mr. Koster said there are public parking options available and that MSU may 
also provide some parking.  Ms. Sieger asked if post office access will be affected during 
construction.  Mr. Koster said the plan is that access would remain open the entire time.  Ms. 
Dunn said it’s a great thing that this building is getting the time and attention it needs, but the 
big question to consider is if the Board is comfortable with investing in a project in which we 
will receive no return.  Mr. Talen asked when the Brownfield capture ends, where the capture 
goes.  Mr. Pratt said it would be a millage like usual and go to the City and County.  Mr. 
Wendt confirmed that this request is not in violation of any statutes.  Mr. Larson said the 
DDA makes many types of investments, with the intention of receiving returns and for the 
betterment of the Downtown.  Mr. Larson added that this is an important site for Downtown 
Grand Rapids and relates directly to the goals of GR Forward and is a significant incremental 
step towards achieving critical mass, increasing connectivity to the West side and North 
Monroe corridors, and investment in the public realm.   
 
Motion: Mayor George Heartwell, supported by Kayem Dunn, moved to approve a $35,000 
Areaway Fill Program Grant for the vacation of an existing areaway located along the Michigan 
Street frontage; a $35,000 Streetscape Improvement Grant for streetscape improvements, 



Downtown Development Authority 
Minutes – January 14, 2015 
Page 4 
 

including a new snowmelt system along Michigan Street, and a $50,000 BRIP Grant towards the 
historic restoration of the building’s two facades.  Motion carried unanimously.   

 
9.  GR Forward Update    
 

Mr. Kelly gave an update on the GR Forward efforts and shared the six goals that have been 
identified by the community.  Mayor Heartwell asked about connectivity and the Street Car 
Task Force.  Mr. Kelly said GR Forward has been working closely with that group and 
everyone is very interested to see what will come out of those discussions.   

 
12.     DGRI President and CEO Report 
 
MNTIFA (1/14) 

• Will consider authorizing funding to continue DASH North Service 
 
DID (2/26) 

• DID Renewal Steering Committee held its first meeting 1/12 
 
DGRI (2/17) 

• All consider approving 2015 Alliance slates 
• Will review cost allocation methodology 

 
Alliances:  
 
INVESTMENT (1/13) 

 
• Chair: Nikos Monoyios, Long Range Planner @ The Rapid  
• Advising on the Downtown Plan process 
• Divided into Implementation-based Working groups: 

o Real Estate Incentives 
o River Activation 
o Public Space Activation 
o Infrastructure 

• Approved their 2015 goals, policies, and implementation measures synthesis 
• Voted to pursue a full cost recovery plan to cover administrative overhead on development 

incentive programs 
 
VIBRANCY (1/21) 

 
• Chair – Brandy Moeller, City of Grand Rapids 
• Conducting busker tryouts 
• Advising on Valent-ICE program 



Downtown Development Authority 
Minutes – January 14, 2015 
Page 5 
 

• Planning a summit on Downtown diversity initiatives for DGRI 
• Divided into Implementation-based Working groups: 

o Holiday Décor  
o Special Events Optimization 
o Workforce Appreciation 
o Diversity & Inclusion 
o Public Space Activation 

 
LIVABILITY (1/26) 

 
• Chair: Lynee Wells, Principal @ Williams & Works 
• Selecting a vendor for streetscape beautification design effort 
• Finalizing bike repair station equipment and locations 
• Discussing an RFP for urban trail initiative 
• Opening up call for artists for potential mural locations 
• Divided into Implementation-based Working groups: 

o Bicycles & Mobility 
o Asset Management 
o Clean, Safe, and Beautiful 
o Engagement 
o Urban Recreation 

 
DGRI Staff Highlights 
 

• 3rd Speaker Series & GR Forward Public Forum – Thursday, January 15th 6:00 PM 
• Engaged 15 additional business and property owners for Valent-ICE sculptures 
• Planning for DGRI Board of Advisors Alignment Retreat – Early March 
• DGRI Staff conducting mid-year budget review – budget amendments to come to Boards in 

February if needed 
• 4th GR Forward Thinking Speaker Series Event: 2/12 @ 600 PM – Peter Kageyama 
• Final GR Forward Thinking Speaker Series Event: 3/12 @ 6:00 PM – Dan Biederman 
• DGRI was nominated for GRBJ Newsmaker of the Year! -  Awards on Jan 28th  

 
13. Public Comment 
 
 None.    
  
14.  Board Member Discussion 
 
 Ms. Hillary thanked Mr. Larson for bringing in such great speakers for the GR Forward 

Speakers Series.  Mr. Harris said he will be soliciting the Board for their thoughts on a possible 
strategic discussion in the near future.    



Downtown Development Authority 
Minutes – January 14, 2015 
Page 6 
 
 
 
 
 
15. Adjournment 
 

The meeting adjourned at 9:56 a.m. 




























































































































































































